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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) ... Good morning, Members. The Public Works
Committee is now in session for June 19, 2006. With us this morning are
Committee Members, Vice-Chair Mr. Molina, Mr. Mateo, and Mr. Hokama.
Excused this morning is Member Carroll. With us this morning are our staff
people, Scott Jensen as well as Yvette Bantilan.
And representing the
Administration is Cindy Young from Corporation Counsel and the Public Works
Director Milton Arakawa.
Members, we do have three items on the agenda this morning. PW-40, which is
the Partial Closure of Hali'a Nakoa Street. This is in Wailuku. PW-38, which is
the Pedestrian Safety at the Intersection of Vineyard Street and Market Street in
Wailuku. And the last item this morning, PW-61, is a Dedication of Roadway
Lots and Drain ... , Drainage Easements for the Kula Manu Subdivisions Nos. 1,2,
and 3 in Kula. This morning, Members, we do have some people that signed up
for public testimony and before we go into public testimony, I'd like to remind
everyone here this morning to either tum your cell phone or your pagers in the off
position or you could put it in the silent position before we begin. Okay, thank
you. The first person that signed up for testimony on PW-38 is Joan O. Noble.
MR. NOBLE: John O. Noble?
sorry. Not Joan,

... BEGIN

John Noble.

TESTIMONY ...

MR. NOBLE: I got extreme terrible handwriting. Good morning, Members of the
Council, Mr. Chair. My name is John Noble. My name is John Noble. I've lived
and worked at 160 Market Street in Wailuku since 1977 when I bought that
building. Today, I guess we're testifying here on this stop sign that we finally got
on Vineyard and Market. It's a very dangerous area to go through there. I've
been almost killed several times. You can see I'm still here, so they didn't quite
get me but it's a, it's a very dangerous area. The stop signs have helped a little. I
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think they should have a stop light there. It is basically a freeway. I don't know
if it's exactly as many cars as go down on Mokulele Highway as go through
Wailuku, but both Central Avenue and Market Street have become freeways.
Literally freeways, not figuratively. The traffic goes through there and starts
backing up. And one of the problems that we had here I noticed when we got the
stop sign, and I think that's why Richard is here today, is that when you have the
stop sign, even more traffic backs up down the freeway, and makes it hard for his
people to get in and out. I talked to some of these workers about what I think is
the solution to stop some of this backing up on Market Street, which I think is to
stop the right turn on red, coming on to Market Street. When I've been coming
from Market Street across Market Street on to North Market Street there, the cars
just keep turning right, and they keep turning right, and they keep turning right,
and they're turning right even when the light is green, and the Market Street side,
the, the traffic from Main Street keeps coming, and coming, and coming. So,
when you're coming across street they're still blocking the entry way to it, and so
I think that would be a good solution to the problem not taking out the stop sign,
but to stop the right turn on red off of Main Street onto Market Street and let the
traffic clear a little bit. For some reason on this island everything seems to be one
spot here, one spot there, one spot there. I mean this traffic is all interconnected,
and I've always been trying to preach to deaf ears that we need a clover leaf down
there where the Hashi station is and then a bypass for Wailuku. Lahaina keeps
crying for a bypass. Paia keeps crying for a bypass. Makawao got a bypass. I
mean you gotta look a little bit to the future. The wolves are circling the parking
lot up here-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. NOBLE: --wanting to put in 700 new parking spots up there too. So, if you look at
the future a little bit too, a clover leaf down there where the Hashi station is that
goes out and passed Wailuku, so all this traffic doesn't have to go through
to
Wailuku would be a good idea too. But, I think the short term the best
do would be to stop that traffic from turning right without the light onto to Market
Street. And, I guess that's about where I am on that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Noble. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much. The second person signed up for
testimony on PW-38 is Chela Co ennen, Coennen. Chela is not here this morning.
Testifying on Public Works Item 40 is Norma Barroga.
MS. BARROGA: Public Works Committee Chair Joe Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Michael
Molina, Members Riki Hokama and Danny Mateo, good morning.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
MS. BARROGA: Thank you very much for this opportunity to speak before you
regarding Hali'a Nakoa Street. I would really like to also thank Mr. Milton
Arakawa and his staff for helping us making sure that the street is safe for our
students. About almost a year ago, Mr. Yamada and his staff came before you
and requested that we partially close Hali'a Nakoa. However, about three months
ago, Hali'a Nakoa Street became one, one-way from the bottom of the Coun.. ,
County gym up to the front of Baldwin High School gate where people were not
allowed to make a left tum. That really helped us a little bit but not quite to the
extent that it will ensure the safety of about 1700 students and about 200 staff at
Baldwin High School. The reason I'm saying that is because we're using the, the
newly built Baldwin High School gym and our students and staff cross that street
on a daily basis and people are not really slowing down on that street. So, it's not
really safe for us. So, what we would like to propose that, that this Committee
would consider having the whole Hali'a Nakoa from the bottom of the County
gym up to the front of Baldwin High School entrance where we have that gate be
closed. And, if we do that measure, it will ensure the safety of our students who
use the Baldwin High School gym on a daily bas ... , basis. It will also, also
ensure the safety of the staff whenever we need to evacuate in case of a disaster or
an emergency like fire. So, again, we would like for this Committee to seriously
consider having that Hali'a Nakoa Street be closed. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Barroga. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much. The next testifier testifying on Public
Works Item 40 is Joan, Joanne Shibuya.
MS. SHIBUYA: Thank you, Chairman Pontanilla. Council Members, thank you for this
opportunity to speak on behalf of Baldwin High School. I, I do echo Mrs.
of you
our efforts for children and student safety on
Barroga's mahalo to
campus. But, I also would like to thank people behind the scenes, Scott Jensen,
Kelly McGinnis, and Naly Yagin, who also helped us our efforts. We're really
concerned about this strip of County road, which is a public road that the public
has access to right in the middle of Baldwin High School campus. We're
concerned about not only the safety of the students as Mrs. Barroga alluded to that
they cross to go to activities at the gymnasium and the campus and the portables
but also for security. Tim Eleneki, who is one of our security officer, had
mentioned at the other meeting that we had an unauthorized vehicle enter our
campus, assaulted a student, and before security could reach that area, this
unauthorized vehicle had escaped through the public road. So, not only the safety
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but the security of the school, and it's very important that we maintain this
campus as part of Baldwin campus, and not have the public have free and full
access to our campus, our students, and our classrooms. There, there are a lot of
security issue on the mainland. Ah, fortunately we don't have that here, and we
don't want to give that opportunity to have our security breached by having the
public to have access of our campus. So, the school's approach at this point is to
go to our original proposal and that is to secure this public road and not allow
unauthorized vehicles coming through our campus. The school will manage
whatever we need to do to maintain this secure .. , secured area. We will, we've
already tried, and we've already installed through federal grant three speed bumps
to slow the driveway exiting from the area. We've also submitted a letter to the
Department of Transportation for the Engineering Department to re-visit and
analyze the traffic flow out of our campus. So, we are taking steps, and we are
taking the responsibility to ensure the safety of our students. And, we're also
looking at the security on campus as well. So, mahalo and we continue to ask for
kokua and your support in our efforts for this.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Shibuya. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much. Is Chela Coennen here this morning? If
not Members, I'll leave public testimony open for a little while. At a certain time,
I'll, I'll close public testimony and I do see a, a person that's signing up to do
public testimony, so. At this time, any other members in the audience that wanna
do testimony, you can come up and, and sign up with our secretary here this
morning. Okay, Members, we do have three people that signed up for public
testimony after the convening of the meeting. At this time, I would like to call on
Teri Edmonds. She'll be testifying on Public Works Item 38.
MS. EDMONDS: Aloha, Council and thank you for having us here today. I'm
Edmonds, owner of If The Shoe Fits and the current President of the Wailuku
Community Association. Our ... we have a growing membership. Part, some of
our members are not for
sign. Some of us are. I would say it's divided down
the middle. I personally, coming from a merchant, I don't mind the stop sign. I
think it's ... I think it encourages people to look at the shops instead of just
driving straight through. As far as the Association goes and, my longer view of
the development plans. This is going to be walking community some day and I
think ... (note: inaudible due to technical difficulties with the sound system) ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Will you excuse us for a minute. Ah, Members, we'll take a
short recess until we fix this problem. Recess ... (gavel) ...
RECESS:

9:21 a.m.
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RECONVENE:

9:28 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that short recess, Members. Members in the
audience this morning we do have some technical problems with our audio here
this morning. We're gonna continue the meeting if you can pardon the
inconvenience until we have this thing corrected. If it comes too unbearable,
we'll take a longer recess then, you know, we, we intended to do this morning.
So, Members, we'll continue with public testimony and at this time I'd like to call
up Ms. Edmonds to provide her public testimony. And, we'll give you another
three minutes. Thank you.
MS. EDMONDS: I'll talk loud too. Anyways, we, since I ... (note: inaudible due to
technical difficulties with the sound system) . . . Okay. As I said, at our last
meeting that we had, it was short notice so we did take a vote and of all people
who attended our meeting, we had a unanimous decision for the stop sign
remaining. I would like to, if you, if you don't make a decision today on it, I
would like to poll everyone of our members 'cause as I said some, we are divided
on it. Some feel strongly opposed, and some strongly for. My personal, as I said,
is I, I like it. I think that it's nice that we have a chance for people to stop and,
and window gaze. Even I do that, and I work on that street. So, the other thing is,
as I said, I support the redevelopment plan, and it is going to be a walking
community. As I see it, I like to, to not go backwards. I think it was a step
forward. It is definitely necessary there. There are so many kids walking out
there and so, anyways, I again, I see it as a step forward. I'd like to continue with
the redevelopment plan, and keep improving the area, and again making it better
for a pedestrian area. As far as our Association goes, we also talked about
making, trying to encourage the growth of business at that intersection there,
instead of just Main and Market 'cause we always get business. So to help those
other business people down there, making that a, a vital area, you know, you have
that nice little park anyways. Long story short, I think that would help us to get a
We're gonna have a sign over at the police station, a tour
bit of traffic
sign. I think it'd be a nice, a nice area. We've got the new shave ice business
there, so it's really a great place for people to mingle, and if we're gonna have
some many pedestrians, and if we make a tour spot out of that Police Resource
Center or around there, we are gonna need to have the management of heavy
traffic. So, again, I'm, I'm for it as an individual. As the Association, I would
like to take a poll of every one of my members to give them all a chance to vote.
And thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Edmonds. Mr. Molina. Ms. Edmonds.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Sorry. Thank you. Just for, for the Committee's information,
yeah, you mentioned, your business membership they're divided on the issue.
Can you tell us what are the major concern or concerns from those who oppose
the stop sign?
MS. EDMONDS: Yes. I, with a short, I believe it is the inaccessibility to parking. And,
I think that it, they felt it makes it difficult to have parking. But, I think Richard
speaks ... he, he knows better about that view 'cause he's been able to share that.
I think he's, he's leading that, that decision. So if, I would actually encourage
you to ask him more on those reasons.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
MS. EDMONDS: Thank you. Any other questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Good, good morning.
MS. EDMONDS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The, the meeting that you had that you took a vote and
the majority of members supported it, out of a total of how many merchants are
along the street side? Can you tell me what numbers participated in your, your
vote?
MS. EDMONDS: Sure. I'm gonna say ... I didn't take an actual vote, but if I counted
my head, it was about 19 people. And so, they are people that continuously
attend the meetings, they're very active, and the redevelopment of the town. So, I
felt that it was important that vote, and we're the ones that are also on every
committee, you know, we kinda string ourselves through all
so
we do a lot of the work. So, I thought that was important as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Ms., Ms. Edmonds, out of the 19, what is the
total number of merchants along the street?
MS. EDMONDS: I'm gonna say if you really added it up, it's probably close to 40. But,
I'm not, not all of those people are members of the Association yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
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MS. EDMONDS: You're welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anymore questions for the testifier? Again, thank you very
much, Ms. Edmonds. The next testifier on Public Works Item 38 is Richard Dan.
Mr. Dan.
MR. DAN: Aloha, ladies and gentlemen. Thank you for all your hard work. I'm a
merchant on Market Street. I've been a retail merchant on Market Street for close
to 30 years. I have had retail stores on both sides of Vineyard on Market Street
between Market and Vineyard and between Vineyard and on over the last 30
years. Presently, I have five retail locations on Market Street employing 16
people. This is Market Street between Vineyard and Main. About two or three
weeks ago, I asked one of my, I, I, this, this stop sign was put out, and I felt that it
was causing me to lose money, and directly because people were ... have been
starting to circumvent Market Street because the traffic build up caused by this
stop sign. In my 30 years of being here, I've never seen any problems with safety
with regard to the corner of Market and Vineyard. If there are, then you guys
have to figure out how to deal with it. I don't know how to deal with such a
thing. As to Teri's testimony, Teri at her, at, at one of the meetings stated that
one of the mission's of the, this new, new Association that they've revitalized was
to make the center of Wailuku, Vineyard and Market. And, I'd hate to think that
it was just veiled under the cov .. , cover of safety to put this stop sign at the corner
of Vineyard and Market to cause people to stop there and look. By causing
people to stop there and look, it has caused the traffic to back up on Market Street
throughout the day, to the point where people now circumvent Market Street
because the traffic is overflowing. I don't see there being a problem with that
sign not being there. It wasn't there for the last 30 years, and I would like you to
remove it. I asked one of my employees about three weeks ago to walk around
Market Street between Vineyard and Main and go to each of the merchants' stores
on Market Street. I had a petition I believe which is all of your files. If it isn't,
I have it right here. You guys can take a look at
and you'll take a look
every single merchant, except for Teri, signed the petition wanting the signed
removed. All the merchants between Market, on Market, between Vineyard and
Main. It's causing congestion, people are having very hard times getting in and
out of parking spots, traffic flows through Market Street. We don't, you know, it
would be great to have people stopping and looking at our stores, but, but them
stopping, and looking at, looking at our stores, it cause, causes traffic to backup so
bad. It, it doesn't make sense to me.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
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MR. DAN: I, I would love to see Market Street become a walking community as, as the
plan has it. But that's not going to happen till the parking issues are resolved as I
understand it. And, I think that's a little bit premature to go ahead and put a stop
sign in now prior to the parking issues being resolved or any of these issues.
That's it. I have nothing else to say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
testifier? Member Molina.

Members, any questions for the

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, sir.
MR. DAN: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Can you tell us pretty much what time of day you find the
traffic backed up is the worst?
MR. DAN: It, it's seasonal. There's certain, like if you're, if you're dealing in the winter
season, you'd have traffic backed up all day long. If you're dealing right now in
the summer season, you'd see traffic backed up around 10, 11 in the morning.
Two, three, four in the afternoon. Then on Fridays, you'd see traffic backed up
from about 11 in the morning through the rest of the day because the people who
are coming in cash checks at the banks. You've got . . . you all know what
Market Street is. You have banks, banks, banks, and other retail stores that's ...
you know, that's when I see it backed up, all afternoons.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Any more questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you very much. The last testifier that signed up after the, the initial
testifier's sign, signed up this morning is Jocelyn Perreira, and she'll be testifying
on Public Works Item 40 and 38.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. Thank you for
this opportunity. My name is Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director and
the Tri-Isle Main Street Program Coordinator for the Wailuku Main Street
Association, Inc.lTri-Isle Main Street Resource Center serving Maui's small
towns now for 20 years. We're here today to frankly listen to the results of the
Public Works study that is under way that's conducting and gathering
information on the intersection of Market and Vineyard's Street, and the impact
of the four way stop sign. Our team of professional engineers, planners, and
architects will take that information, look at it, and render an opinion once we
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receive all of the facts. Weare aware of the divided OpIniOnS among the
merchants of Market Street. We advocate for a broader group of merchants that
in, in the heart of Wailuku. We know that they are concerned about effectiveness,
safety, and business related concerns. We understand the complexities of the
issues. Our first and foremost concern is of course for our children, elders,
residents, and visitors for their safety. Likewise, we have an obligation to keep
our businesses viable. We can offer a suggestion in the meantime regarding the
traffic lights at the intersection of Main and Market Streets should probably be
looked at. And after thorough independent review of the facts, we may
recommend other traffic calming measures such as we, we gave Public Works in
the past a whole list of traffic calming measures for the area for small towns in
general, and we'd be happy to share that again that will not hamper the business
activity. We think you should again, we say we need to look at raised cross ... ,
crosswalks maybe in that particular area, have a traffic controller certainly to
facilitate the children to and from school once school opens again, because God
forbid we wouldn't want anything happen to one of our children. Study the
impacts also has to be from Hap .. , Happy Valley up and from Mill Street up.
There is some real concerns about big trucks when they have to stop on the
incline because of the stop sign. We know that, and we, and, and we do know
people are circumventing the area as was stated. Study, let's see, additionally,
traffic is going also onto Central Avenue as many are trying to avoid the Main
and Market intersection. We are currently working with the cruise industry. We
need to try to remedy ... (note: inaudible due to technical difficulties with the
sound system) . .. so that when they are ready to, ready to start service in
dropping their clientele to Wailuku that it can be running smoothly at that time.
So, if there is a time to fix some of the concerns, now is probably a good time to
do it. We want to thank Public Works for their work on that, and for your paying
attention to this important issue.
PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for
testifier on Public
Works
40? Ifnot, Jocelyn, you can go ahead on testifying on Public Works
Item 38.
MS. PERREIRA: Yes. We would like to add our voices, the Main Street voices, to the
support of the partial the closure ofHali'a Nakoa Street in Wailuku. Again, it's a
question of safety for our children ... these are older children and they should be
more careful. However, we do think that there are times that we have to err on
the side of caution and this is one of those times. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier on this
item? Ifnot, thank you very much.
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MS. PERREIRA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Members, the Chair is gonna leave public testimony
open for a little longer. And at this time, I'd like to introduce to you, also in the
audience is the Deputy Parks Direct ... , Director John Buck, as well as, we do
have two officers in here, Lieutenant George Moniz from the Wailuku Patrol, as
well as, Sergeant Mark Vickers. Also, joining us this morning is our Deputy Fire
Chief, Mr. Bal. At this time, Members, I'd like to call on the Director of Public
Works to give us some history on Public Works Item 30 ... Public Works Item
40 to begin with. Mr. Arakawa.

40

PARTIAL CLOSURE OF
(WAILUKU) (C.c. No. 05-288)

HALlA

NAKOA

STREET

MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item stems from request from Mr.
Stephen Yamada and Mr. Timothy Eleneki of Baldwin High School to close
Hali'a Nakoa to vehicular traffic between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to the
3:00 p.m ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... this was based on their concern related to
student pedestrian traffic mixing with vehicular traffic during the course of the
school day. The Public Works Committee met on this matter back in November
of 2005 and several alternatives were discussed at that time. Closure of Hali'a
Nakoa was discussed. That would require action by ordinance. Moreover, it, it
was uncertain as to how this would affect the existing teacher parking lot, which
the driveway connects up to Hali'a Nakoa and the Baldwin High School gym,
which also accesses, accesses onto Hali' a N akoa. Also discussed was the
possibility of transferring ownership and control of Hali'a Nakoa to the State.
This roadway traverses the main Baldwin High School campus on one side and
the Baldwin High School gym on the other, so the roadway actually functions
more as an internal school roadway than a County road. However, at that time, I
believe the Committee felt this was maybe more of a longer term solution to the
problem. Also discussed was a temporary one-way test on Hali'a Nakoa. Section
10.28.130 of the Code allows for an eight, eight week test of a temporary traffic
control measure. The one-way test could reduce the amount of vehicles using the
roadway, as well as reduce pedestrian conflicts. In consultation with Baldwin
High School, the Department decided to implement the one-way test on Hali'a
Nakoa, and this test started on May 1, 2006. The decision was made to do the
one-way test in the Wailuku direction and it was felt that this would result in less
pedestrian conflict than going one-way in the Kahului direction. As with any
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revision in traffic control, an adjustment period ensued. Prior to the test, the ... if
you took a route from Kanaloa Avenue going up Hali'a Nakoa, and at the stop
sign at the top of Hali'a Nakoa make a right go, and then go to the pick up and
drop off area near the Baldwin High School auditorium, and then loop around and
exit onto Kaahumanu Avenue, that route took approximately seven minutes
during the morning rush hour. On the initial day of the test, this same route took
23 minutes. And on following days, the time continually decreased and
eventually stabilized at about ten minutes. We also measured the timing of the
route, entering from Kaahumanu Avenue, going straight in to the pick up, drop off
area near the BHS Auditorium, and then looping around back to exiting onto
Kaahumanu. And prior to that test, prior to the test, the route took about five
minutes. On the initial day of the test, this route took 11 minutes. And as the
adjustment period progressed, the time leveled off to about seven minutes. Along
with the installation of traffic control devices for the one-way test, a crosswalk
was striped across Hali'a Nakoa from Kaahumanu Avenue into the BHS campus.
Despite this additional crosswalk, students were observed to enter and cross the
intersection at whatever points were found to be most convenient. Motorists were
also observed disregarding the traffic control measures installed with the test. I
should mention at the stop sign at the top of Hali'a Nakoa, there is a left turn
prohibition during school rush hours. So, as I mentioned, you'd have to go turn
right at the stop sign, and loop around by the auditorium, and come back out. So,
motorists were found to instead of looping around make that left turn at the stop
sign, which usually cause additional congestion. We also found vehicles going
one-way in the wrong direction during non-rush hours. It is noted though that the
test of one-way traffic has reduced some potential for conflicts between
pedestrian and vehicles during rush hours. However, it appear, also appears that
some pedestrians and vehicles still traverse the school area in a manner they
found most comfortable and convenient while not complying with the necessary
traffic control devices.
illustrate some
Today, I've circulated to the Committee some graphics
alternatives which the Committee may want to consider, and what you have
before you is Exhibit 1, actually shows the configuration of the one-way test in
the Wailuku direction, which is currently what is existing. And, I should also
mention that one side effect of that test is that we have seen increased student
parking in the War Memorial parking lot before it comes up for that one-way
configuration.
Exhibit 2 is another alternative, which shows the one-way configuration going
down Hali'a Nakoa or basically in the Kahului direction. And this alternative
would eliminate that issue of left turn noncompliance at the Hali'a Nakoa
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Wailuku terminus. It would also provide a walking lane for students on the right
side of the roadway as they're coming up the roadway. On the negative side,
there is still some potential for pedestrian conflict when students have to cross the
vehicular travel lane to get to and from their car. Basically, we're assuming that
students would get out of the right side of passenger car and have to cross the
travel lane to get to the main campus, so there's, you know, some potential for
conflict there. This alternative would also add traffic to an already crowded
Kaahumanu Avenue, or also perhaps increase student pick up and drop off in the
War Memorial parking lot.
Exhibit 3 closes the Kahului portion of Hali'a Nakoa from the War Memorial
parking lot that fire lane that currently exists to the Baldwin High School gym
driveway. And, this alterative would show the remainder of Hali'a Nakoa being
two-way. A thought here would be to use the teacher's parking lot to pick up and
drop off. And in speaking with the, the Department of Parks and Recreation this
is an alternative which they would favor. This does provide a safe walking path
for at least a, a portion of Hali'a Nakoa from the BHS gym driveway to the
teacher parking lots students would have to walk on the shoulder of the road. On
the down side, it would add congestion to, congestion at the already busy Hali'a
Nakoa Wailuku terminus intersection, and the issue ofleft tum noncompliance at
the Hali'a Nakoa Wailuku terminus would also be an issue, still remain and issue,
and pick up and drop off in the War Memorial parking lot would likely still occur.
Exhibit 4 shows an alternative which closes the Wailuku portion of Hali'a Nakoa
from the Wailuku terminus to just before the teacher parking lot, and this would
have the remainder ofHali'a Nakoa being one-way. I mean, sorry two-way. Pick
up and drop off can be here in the teacher parking lot, and in previously talking
with the Baldwin High School principal, this was something that at least she had
previously favored, and it does provide an orderly way to pick up and drop off
students, and it does not add to the congested traffic congestion conditions near
Ha}i'a Nakoa - - the Hali'a Nakoa terminus. However, the original two-way
through configuration of Hali'a Nakoa often saw students jaywalking along this
lower section of Hali'a Nakoa. So, if that two-way section remains probably
you'll have the same concerns for pedestrian safety still, still occur. Each of the
alternatives that I've presented have their own pros and cons and I, I regret, regret
we were not able to have a bill drafted for the Committee's consideration today,
but I'd be happy to try to answer any questions which the Committee may have
on the alternatives before you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Before I ask the Members to ask
Mr. Arakawa questions, I, I just wanna call up the Deputy Public, Parks Director

- 13 -

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 19,2006

to come up and give some comments. I understand that he needs to leave early
for another meeting, so if Mr. Buck can come up forward. And also Mr. Bal from
the Fire Department to come up forward and give us some recommendations or
ideas in regards to this particular issue that we have at Baldwin High School.
MR. BUCK: Thank you, Committee Chair Pontanilla, Committee Members. Thank you
for giving me the opportunity. I do need to have to leave for another meeting. As
far as the current set up for Hali, Hali' a N akoa, one of the biggest problems we
had as a department was the lack of or . . . enforcement or as far as people not
reading the signs it's, it's a one-way street. There's been many occasions when
I've gone up the hill after school hours or in between is people are getting in the
habit of coming down that hill that I've had or caught almost twice of not coming
up here to the County had head on accidents with vehicles going down the wrong
way. That's the downside of that, with the current traffic pattern. Students safety,
I think, is the, the major concern. This whole traffic pattern issue is a, basically is
a, the Baldwin High School really a big problem because of the way that they've
grown over the years, and I don't think their infrastructure in and out of school
has gotten better. But, because it's a County road, it could be a County issue. My
recommendation, I think, when we had talked about it is what the high school is,
testified this morning is to block Hali'a Nakoa down at the bottom of the hill,
right by where the fire lane is that goes to the side of that War Memorial gym, and
that way the, the, those who enter Baldwin High School up on top, and I guess,
and in talking with Public Works the other day, we can have signage on
Kaahumanu Avenue, left tum only for Baldwin High School business. If you're
going to War Memorial, use Kanaloa. That way those who come into Baldwin
High School have to, if they don't like the traffic pattern, going all the way
around by the auditorium, then that's because they, they should only be doing
Baldwin High School traffic pattern. Even with the increase or the way it is now,
there are students who are using War Memorial parking lot and that what this is
right now is not a, not a real issue. It could be in,
future but we don't see it
as a problem.
we make the, the road two-way as one of the proposals is, as
being proposed, then the problem with that is you don't have a safe walkway
going from the War Memorial parking lot up to the high school. I think if we just
block it off at the bottom, those people, those who are dropping off their students
in the mornings who don't really want to fight that traffic left hand tum lane at
Baldwin High School are gonna end up at War Memorial anyway. We can find
all kinds of reasons why shouldn't block off the road, but I think instead of trying
to find the reasons why we shouldn't, I think maybe that's be a solution and find
some ... ifthere, there's a reason why we cannot do it, maybe find a solution we
can. If it's a matter of dropping people off maybe ... in working with the school
we can encourage if you didn't want to fight the traffic maybe be dropped off by
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the tennis courts and walk up 'cause that is a safer route going up by the tennis
courts or have 'em dropped off at the War Memorial parking lot in front of the
gym. Actually, I think the safest place to walk right now is being dropped offby
the tennis courts, and then walking up 'cause they have a pathway that goes all the
way up, up the hill. And then at the time when we have special events, such as
the County Fair or the Little League Carnivals, then have it open up like for fire,
you know, like we do and make it one-way go .. , one-way going down the hill.
One other thing is if you were going to make it one-way, we would be in favor of
it having going one-way down the hill, so that when it came to special events time
that we don't have to confuse the public. You know, ifit's going one-way up the
hill like it is now and when it comes County Fair time because everybody's used
to going down the hill and it just makes more sense logistically when you have
the County Fair for parking, and, and delivery of supplies for the County Fair as
having one-way going down the hill. Ifwe're going to remain it one-way then it
should be coming down the hill. But, the Department is for, either for, one-way
traffic. We're against the two-way traffic at the bottom in one of the proposals.
We're definitely against that 'cause we see a lot of problems with that. Our
original recommendation work ... , working with the school is to block off the road
at the bottom and make Hali'a Nakoa strictly a Baldwin High School concern
from the bottom of the hill all the way up their entrance. So that'll become part of
Baldwin High School. It will still remains as a County road but leave it so those
who are entering that left hand tum lane off Kaahumanu is only doing Baldwin
High School business. I think it's ... will help the school addressing some of
their safety issues they brought up earlier about people coming off campus to
cause trouble. I've worked in a school district in the mainland for a few years and
that was one of the problems that we had. Fortunately, we did not have . . .
what's a good thing about the couple of high schools that I worked at, we did not
have a main County road going through the campus. We still had people driving
on but we had little bit more controls. That would be our recommendation.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
you,
Buck. I understand you need to leave early.
So, Members, do you have any questions for the Deputy Parks Director, Mr.
Buck? If not, thank you very much, John. At this time, I'd like to have the
Deputy Fire Chief give us some comments in regards to this particular issue at
Baldwin High School. Mr. Bal.
MR. BAL: Mr. Chair, thank you. Members, members of the audience. I, as far as the
Fire Department goes, if you chose to lock up both ends, we have no objection to
that. We, we will be able to get in anyway you look at. Personally, as a parent, I
would personally like to see both ends locked up also, and keep the traffic out of
there. But, representing the Fire Department, we do not have a problem.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the Deputy Chief
here? If not, thank you again, Mr. Bal. Okay, Mr. Arakawa. Members, any
questions for the Public Works Director? Mr. Mateo followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa, good
morning. In the exhibits that you provided the Committee, 1 through 4, has, has
the Department looked at a specific as the priority and maybe to follow up, prior
to the gym actually being constructed, was there actual communications between
the State and the County because I cannot see how traffic was not part of a
consideration?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, I, I'm not certain what transpired between
the State and the County on that construction of the Baldwin High School gym,
but, I, I, I can tell you now in retrospect that the gym actually splits the campus.
And so it, it really makes the function of the Hali'a Nakoa much like a, a, an
internal road rather than a County road. And, and that's how it functions right
now. So, from the long term, you know, I'd prefer to have this matter actually the
roadway dedicated back to the State, if they would take it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and, Mr. Arakawa that dedication would come
with, with some conditions for County access to the, to the roadway for, for things
like our fairs and, and carnivals, etc.?
MR. ARAKA WA: I guess that would be part of the, the negotiations with the State. I
know the last time the Committee met we had discussed that as a possible long
term issue but the, I guess the, the bigger issue is what to do in the shorter, the
short term. And, well, I mean that's still, that's still on the table but I guess the
issue is what, what to do in the, the short term.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. And, if you could just tell us with the
exhibits the Department's priority.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, Mr., Mr. Chair, Councilman Mateo, each of these actually have
pros and cons to it. And ... there's really no perfect solution. I, I know one other
alternative that have been added to the mix and this is Baldwin High School's
original proposal to, to close the road entirely. As we mentioned back then
though, the closure on a County road means just that it's a closure so I, I'm not
sure how the, the gym and the teacher's parking lot would, would have access if
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the road were close so ... unless there's some special arrangements made for, for
those purposes. But, you know, if, if it means having someone stand there at the
entrance to, to allow certain users to, to enter and exit then, you know, then we,
we, we would, we would object to that. We, we don't have the manpower to do
that. But basically all of these have the pros and cons, you know, I think the oneway going up has had some issues. I believe the proposal that's been proposed by
the Parks Department would certainly address their concerns for traffic through
the parking lot. However, the, the, the downside to me on the, the closing the
bottom portion is you still have this issue of congestion within the Baldwin High
School campus with that, especially with that left tum noncompliance issue at the
stop sign. The other closure, partial closure, where the top portion is, is closed
would still have some issues with pedestrian safety since you have two-way
traffic on the bottom portion of the road. So, it's basically going to be a trade off.
I, I think it would work well in the sense that there's limited capacity to go up and
down the road. You may see some additional parking within the War Memorial
parking lot by students instead of going up, going up and down that road. Or, you
may see additional pick and drop off along Kaahumanu Avenue coming in to the
campus itself. So, there's some downside there. And the other, the other option,
of course to, is to do just the one-way going down instead of coming up. But, like
the, the existing one-way test we still have issues of noncompliance where we
have seen vehicles go basically the wrong way during the non rush hour so each
of these have their pros and cons, and basically you just have to, you know. make
a pick as to which one, which poison you're gonna be picking I guess.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Sounds like we have a lot of poison to
choose from Mr. Arakawa. But on a serious note, you mentioned the, the
ramifications of, for example,
we closed off, completely closed off Hali'a
Nakoa Road, and with students parking in the War Memorial parking lot. Do you
at this time have a count as to how many parking stall, stalls are available within
that area? And I, I ask that because we have, you know, citizens that, you know,
go there for County business, and I don't know what kind of impact it would have
on the amount of parking space left for our citizens who want to do County
business over at, I guess, the Parks Department, then people who use the
swimming pool, and I would guess the normal school hours you're looking at
7:30 to 2:00 p.m., you know, you'd have less students in that parking lot. Can
you give comment on that?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilman Molina, I, I don't have that number although I can tell
you that I have, I've gone down there to take a look at the, the amount of parking
that takes place during regular school and there, there's still is, when I've gone
there, I've seen where the, there still are parking spaces available within that
parking lot. And, I think generally if you can check with the Baldwin High
School folks, I believe their policy is to have students park on the campus rather
than off-campus. But because of the congestion that this one-way test has caused,
I guess, students have felt that they would be more comfortable just parking their
car down there rather than dealing with the congestion and going to the campus
and actually park.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Ah, Chair, can I ask a quick question of
Corporation Counsel?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning, Ms. Young. If we're looking at totally
restricting access from, you know, on Hali'a Nakoa Road from say 7:30 in the
morning till 2:00 in the afternoon, any issues there because it's a County road
paid for by the taxpayers, and now we're looking at cutting off access to the, the
general public? Any potential issues we have to be aware of, we need to be aware
of?
MS. YOUNG: Not that I'm aware of, but that would require, that would require an
ordinance passed by Council, but you know basically the discussion is safety, so
if that's required for the safety of, of the students and pedestrians of Baldwin
High School then, then by ordinance Council could pass that partial closure based
on, based on time.
MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? I, I got couple for
the Corporation Counsel. In regards to transferring the ownership of the property
to the DOE, what is required or what will be required?
MS. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, my understanding of, of the way that the property, the
ownership of the property in question is that Hali'a Nakoa Street, the property that
underlies the street, is part of a larger parcel that underlies a portion or all of
Baldwin campus proper as well as War Memorial Gym. So, as such, in order for
a transfer to occur there would need to be a subdivision approved by, by the
Public Works Department. But additionally the, the subdivision could be done
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after any Council resolution authorizing that transfer of property. Prior to the
authorization of the transfer of property, we would need certain information,
metes and bounds description would be one, and there may be additional ones.
That's the one that comes to mind. That would be the description of the property
that we would be conveying. Obviously a determination would have to be made
of what particular property we are conveying to the State and then we would a, an
authorization .... resolution authorizing that transfer of property to the State to
be passed by Council, and then the appropriate documents, the, the deed and such
to be executed and recorded.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Question for the Public Works Director in regards
to some of the exhibits here. Presently, how does the teachers, you know, enter
their parking lot from what direction?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair. Basically with the one-way test, you know, the one-way
direction is in the, the Wailuku direction, so they'd have to enter from Kanaloa
Avenue to access the teacher parking lot and exit going out toward the Wailuku
direction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'm looking at Exhibit No.3, at the bottom of War
Memorial parking lot, there's, I guess, a read line probably signifying as a gate,
and Baldwin High School gym, right of crossing there's another red light,
probably signifying a gate. What's the possibility of maybe moving that
particular gate up to the intersec ... , intersection prior to going into the teacher's
parking lot? Making it two-way traffic coming in, or one-way traffic coming in
from Kaahumanu and when you exit the teacher's parking lot, provide some no
left turn signs as you exit on to Baldwin High School major parking lot area at the
intersection.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, Exhibit 3, actually we had put
gate between
War Memorial parking lot
and just before the gym driveway.
we do
basically, that's to provide some access to the gym parking lot there.
move it to some other point, then I suppose we'd have to find a way to provide
access to the gym parking lot in some other fashion then. But the, the thought
with Exhibit 3 if I may mention is that hopefully people would come in
Kaahumanu Avenue, turn down Hali'a Nakoa, and do their pick up and drop off
within the teacher parking lot by circulating around the teacher parking lot, and
then coming back out near the Hali'a Nakoa stop sign, and circulating out around
Baldwin High School before exiting onto Kaahumanu Avenue.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, at the major intersection of
Kaahumanu and entering Baldwin High School, is there any barriers coming into
the school to prohibit people coming out of the teacher's parking lot from making
a left tum at that location, or even you know coming out of the major parking lot
from Baldwin High School, a barrier through stop people of, you know, from
going across to the teacher's parking lot?
MR. ARAKAWA: There is currently no barrier. There's just signage and the issue you
is
something
we've
discussed,
brought
up
about
barrier
it ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... like a rolling type of gate where it would prevent a
vehicle from making a left tum out of that Hali'a Nakoa driveway and you
basically have to tum right once you reach the top there. So, that's a possibility
that we could look at. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, anymore questions for the Director? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are you having Police Department give their
comments regarding traffic flow in their, from their perspective?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I can have them come up. If the two officers can come up and
provide some testimony or comments.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, before the representatives of the Police
Department get, get situated for some response to questions, is there someone
officially representing the school this morning?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, we do have Norma Barroga as well as Joanne Shibuya
from Baldwin High School. Norma is the Acting Principal.
COUNCILMEMBER
Okay, okay. Maybe we can have Sergeant Vickers
or, or, other officer maybe give us their thoughts regarding traffic flow patterns,
bad driving habits from students and adults in this area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, if we can have Sergeant Vickers provide us with some
information, or if not, Mr. Moniz, Officer Moniz.
MR. MONIZ: Hi, Council Chair, Pontanilla, Council Members. Our concern is with
public safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and as you all know, the way with
that one-way pattern that they have now, there's just one-way that you can get in
and out of Baldwin High School, and this is causing up traffic congestion in that
one intersection. It's both coming up Kaahumanu and making that left tum into
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Baldwin High School, and we just forcing everyone to come into one intersection.
That's the only way in, the only way out. And, we're concerned maybe if we had
it going down instead of coming up that's an alternative point of dropping off
their students, and we won't be forcing everybody to go up and have to go
through campus, and as the school Administration has said there's a study that's
going to be done in regards to maybe alternative traffic patterns within the school.
But for the time being if we maybe made that traffic flow go down Hali'a Nakoa
instead of coming up maybe it would work out a little better in alleviating some of
that traffic congestion that we have at that intersection of Maui Lani and
Kaahumanu and Baldwin High School.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank, thank you for your comments. I, I know
we are very fixated on looking at what is currently there. If you had an
opportunity to, to change the entry-exit points to the school as well as to access
the gym, the schools gym, where would you put the entry exit? Would you move
the current entry-exit into the school and maybe move it higher toward the
Army's facility or, or you would look at another point for entry-exit to the school
instead of the current site?
MR. MONIZ: I think at this time we should look at maybe alternative drop off sites to
see if that would work before we get into something of moving that whole
intersection. I think by studying alternative drop off sites like from Mr. Buck's
from Parks and Recreation had mentioned maybe that would alleviate a lot of the
traffic that's being forced to go into the Baldwin High School campus per se and
having just one exit 'cause on a daily basis you can just see the traffic backing up
at the intersection where there's no where else they can go other than exit..,
exiting onto Kaahumanu Avenue.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right, right.
MONIZ: So ... I guess if we have a, a study where
be,
Nakoa
might be one-way going down, maybe that would alleviate some of the traffic, or
like I said maybe alterative drop off sites, whether it's the gym parking lot or in
the stadium parking lot next to the tennis courts.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Besides the normal school usage and of course and
during County Fair and large organizations using the County facilities at War
Memorial Complex, is the Department aware of other situations that create this
type of bad traffic flows and patterns?
MR. MONIZ: No, the only time we, we see it affected is during morning hour traffic.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Morning hour traffic?
MR. MONIZ: Because everybody's coming up to Wailuku to work, so there's a lot of
traffic going up Kaahumanu.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can I, can I take that the, the afternoon, after school
traffic is, is not as, you know, intense, if, if that's the right word, as the morning
requirements?
MR. MONIZ: It's not as intense. No, 'cause there's no one actually, you don't see the
back up on Kaahumanu both ways.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the
Police Department's responses.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Molina.

Members, anymore questions for the Police Department?

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning. It's been mentioned
that even with the, I guess, the temporary closure of, of part of Hali'a Nakoa,
there's still parents and kids, you know, crossing illegally and people dropping
their kids off in the middle of the road. How has the Police Department tried to
monitor that? And, I know the Department's sort of stretched in terms of
manpower. Has there been any active networking with say the School Community
Parent Association or at least just sort of like a, a neighborhood watch thing to, to
let drivers and teenagers know that hey follow the rules of the road in terms of
safety. Can, can you give comment on that?
MR. MONIZ: I think that can be addressed better by our school resource officer that's
assigned to Baldwin
School. Maybe they can sit down and address that
concern with the Administration in regards to having information put out in
regards to the students. I, I see them coming across even when I'm going to
work. They coming up, their parents drop them off on Maui Lani Parkway, and
they're running across the street. But there's a traffic control signal there that
allows them to come across the street, but unfortunately some students they don't
abide by that crosswalk there. So, maybe that's something the County can be
brought up with our school resource officer and the administration at Baldwin
High School to make them more aware before something actually happens there.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAlR PONTANILLA:

Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the Police
Department? At this time, I would like to thank Lieutenant Moniz and Sergeant
Vickers for being here this morning. You guys gonna stay around for the next
one, right?

MR. MONIZ: Vineyard.
CHAlR PONT ANILLA:

The Vineyard and Market Street. Thank you,
anymore questions for either Public Works or Corporation Counsel?

Members,

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One for Corporation Counsel, please.
CHAlR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Ms. Young. Oh, Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Ms. Young, the State has through the Governor's
Office, the use of an Executive Order to allow the County to use State property
without relinquishing jurisdiction and title. Does the County have a similar
mechanism that we could use? We looking at like the Old Lahaina Courthouse.
We looking at the infield of Kahului Harbor that's all Executive Orders. We
looking at Puunene Airport, still owned by the State, but currently under the
County's jurisdiction to operate permitted uses. Would you need to get back to
us, Ms., Ms. Young?
MS. YOUNG: Yes, if I could. Your question is that the County would still own the
properties?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is there a mechanism, such as the State Executive
Order, that the County can utilize for the same purpose. It's just reversed.
County is, you know, the Council might have to authorize the Mayor to enter into
an intergovernmental agreement, but it'll be just the reverse of the State's
is allowed to
Executive Order. We're saying the State can or Department of
use County land for this particular use and, and that's what it is, you know, we are
going through subdivision and all of the other types of requirements you had
shared with in response to Mr. Molina's question.
MS. YOUNG: Okay. We would need to get back to you on that. We need time to
research that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Gee. Well, thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. We'll put that in writing to
Corporation Counsel in regards to that request. Okay, Members, anymore
questions for either Ms. Young or Mr. Arakawa? If not, the Chair at this time, at
this time would like to defer this item.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, Chairman, before you defer, may I, I, with
the Members, you know, indulgence, could we maybe have Ms. Barroga, Chair,
Ms. Barroga to respond to just a few questions, please?
MS. BARROGA: Good morning, Council Members.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning. Thank you for being here, Mrs.
Barroga. Are you aware when the school proposed the gym how it was, what was
the, the planning concept of how the students would be utilizing, and accessing,
and departing from the gym as well as vehicular traffic on Hali'a Nakoa, Hali'a
Nakoa Drive? Can you, do you have any recollection of how this was suppose to
work out conceptionally before the gym was built?
MS. BARROGA: I would like to inform you that I was assigned to Baldwin High School
in February, so that was long after the gymnasium was built. However, I have
Joanne Shibuya here who is our Administrator School Assistant who can respond
to that question. Joanne, would you please come up?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Ms. Shibuya.
MS. SHIBUYA: Joanne Shibuya, Budget and Facilities Specialist at, at Baldwin
Complex. It was my understanding that the gym was built with in "Cork Barrel
Monies", and so it was on the fast-track. So, I'm not sure if Public Works were
given the opportunity to address the impact of a County road through the campus.
However, it's my understanding that whenever anything is built by the DOE. the
various departments review the plans and, and we solicit
So, I, I have
to assume that this did occur as well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, can you tell us this morning how the ... what was
the school's approach?
MS. SHIBUYA: I believe it was an opportunity to have a school gymnasium and they
did whatever that needed to ... that was necessary to have this gym built.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So ...
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MS. SHIBUYA: And I don't believe that, you know, I, I cannot say for sure ... 'cause I
don't wanna ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand the school, you know, needing the either
or wanting their own gym and they have now their own gym. But, I would be
surprised that school and the Department of Education did not think about traffic
flow patterns and student pedestrian use and access to get to the facility and back
to the, the major campus complex. And so, my question is what was the school's
approach? We know we going have more traffic but that's okay, we're gonna live
with the existing situation. We know we're gonna have the kids walking across
Hali'a Nakoa but that's okay. Was that school's attitude?
MS. SHIBUYA: No, I, I don't believe that, that ... I could not say that would have been
their attitude. I think the, the growth of the school ... the impact of the growth of
the school was faster than, you know, taking care of business.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Has the school thought about raised crosswalks, and
I'm talking about so that the vehicles can go underneath the sidewalks to get safe
pedestrian use to and from the gym, gym complex to the main campus?
MS. SHIBUYA: Raised crosswalk, we, we cannot, we attempted to propose safety
controls on Hali'a Nakoa, but it is a County road, and we were reminded that it
was a County road, and the State cannot do any enhancements or improvements
on the County road. So, our efforts were rejected by the State.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I not talking about on top the road, I'm talking above
the road.
MS. SHIBUYA: No, they've, they've
road.
COUNCILMEMBER

no discussion regarding an overpass on that

Pedestrian overpass?

MS. SHIBUYA: That's correct. No, there has, there has been no discussion regarding
that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Even during the conceptional planning for the gym
itself?
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MS. SHIBUYA: You know, I, I don't know if anyone on campus were involved with
that, that's now on campus. I mean many, many of the individuals who were part
of that have moved on. So, we don't have the historical information right now.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Shibuya for your comments.
MS. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate it. Thank you very much.
Members, anymore questions for, you know, Joanne or
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Norma? Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning. Further, Mrs. Barroga
and Ms. Shibuya, with regards to the question I asked Off.., Officer Moniz,
Lieutenant, Lieutenant Moniz, excuse me, what is, what efforts has the school
made to network with parents about, you know, the safety issue when, you know,
kids being dropped off right in the middle of the road ... has, has there been some
type of, you know, push to make parents aware?
MS. BARROGA: Yes. Yes, actually our Parent Networking Coordinator has been very
good in doing that, and Joanne has been very helpful with parent communication.
So even with the one-way test, even before the implementation on that we
communicated well to our parents. And, I think it really requires a shift in
thinking for our parents and if we really communicate with them, I know that the
alternatives that were presented by the Deputy Director of Parks and Rec. are two
viable options -- dropping off our students at the tennis courts or at the War
Memorial parking are two possible sites that will be very, very safe for our kids.
And like I said, if we communicate with our parents and our students, I know that
they'll comply.
MS. SHIBUYA: Councilmember Molina, thank you for asking that question.
upper
parking is the designated drop off and pick up for all students and it is the only
designated area for the bus loading area. The lower parking is not a designated
drop off and pick up area.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Ms. Shibuya, when you say the lower
area, is, is that the teacher's parking lot?
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MS. SHIBUYA: That's correct. That is our faculty parking.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Anymore questions for the Administrators of
Baldwin High School? If not, thank you again.
MS. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Members anymore questions for the Public Works Director
or Corporation Counsel? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Prior, prior to your recommendation of
deferral of, what kind of, this is a temporary measure that we have in place. It's
for the director. How much time do we have left before, I guess, the Committee
has to make a decision on what we're gonna do, whether we leave what's in place
now or make changes or have it go back to it was originally?
MR. ARAKAWA: Ah, Councilmember Molina, the test started on May 1st. So, basically
you looking roughly, I don't have the exact date, but around the end of June. The
reason why we, we had gotten this report to you earlier was, you know, school is
basically out, so most of the data was collected during school. So, that, that's
what the reason why we got the report in now.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Before I make my decision in regards
to deferring this item here, you know, the Police Department had provided us with
some good information in regards to how they perceive safety issues at the
Baldwin High School in regards to traffic. And, I would like to have the Public
Works Director along with the Police Department and the Administration of
Baldwin High School work out a temporary solution. I, I think the long term
solution is to transfer this property to the State of Hawaii, but in the meantime,
prior to the reconvening of the school year, if we could work with the Baldwin
High School Administration as well as the Police Department to come up with a
viable alternative that we can provide for our children's safety going to school as
well as, you know, going home to, from school. So, Members, at this time, the
Chair would like to defer this item, if there's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, before we go into Public
Works Item Number 40, the Chair would like to take a ten minute break. So, we
will reconvene at 10:45 a.m .... (gavel) ... recess

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:35 a.m.
10:52 a.m.

.. (gavel) ... Thank you, Members, for that break. The
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Public Works Committee is now back in session. At this time, before the Chair
close public testimony, we do have two individuals that have signed up for public
testimony this morning. At this time, I'd like to call on Chela Coennen testifying
on Public Works Item 38.
MS. COENNEN: Hi, good morning. Can you hear me okay?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
MS. COENNEN: Okay. Thanks for having this by the way. Good morning. My name
is Chela Coennen. My husband and I started Maui Booksellers in the heart of
Wailuku, in the heart of Wailuku's commercial core at the comer of Market and
Vineyard, the comer that is in question this morning. Partially because of the
Wailuku Redevelopment Area Plan, the plan calls for traffic calming measures,
calls for accessibility for pedestrians between activity centers, the plan calls for
this area to be of mixed use for residents, businesses, as well as services. When
we first moved in, there was no stop sign there and the traffic just flew, flew,
flew, flew right through. Mrs. Hotta, from Gilberts, who's observed the traffic
there for 50 years, same observation about the traffic flying through. I understand
that change is uncomfortable and the growing pains that will corne with the
beautification and the parking structure and the Wailuku Redevelopment Area
Plan in general is gonna be, you know, something for us all to go through, but I
know some of you on this Committee have walked that intersection and have
experienced the treachery that is getting across the road. So, I use that, that
crosswalk six to eight times a day, and I'm still in jeopardy. And the kids that
corne into my shop all the time, everyday, their number one complaint about that
stop sign is that people don't stop. So, it would be really cool, I think, if we could
get law enforcement there for one day to show people that stopping is important at
the stop sign and that the crosswalk law was intended for a reason.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chela.
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MS. COENNEN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any questions for the testifier?
MS. COENNEN: Yep.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much.
MS. COENNEN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next to testify on Public Works Item 38, John S. Rippy.
MR. RIPPY: Aloha. John Rip ... , my name is John S. Rippy, and I right now have a
store on the comer of Market and, Market and Vineyard. And, it was suggested
that I, there was some kind of business idea that why I wanted cars to stop there,
and it's not. It's just not true. It's a very, very dangerous comer. Even with the
stop signs, it's still dangerous. I caught myself doing some of the dangerous
things too. And when they first put the stop sign, I just continued around the
comer or corning through Market Street, and over the years, I know I have made a
mistake to drive down into Market Street through that one-way side. And I, if you
stood there before the stop signs, you would see in a day, in a, in a course of a
date, the day, you would see 10-12 cars going down the wrong way. Now aside
from that, I think that the County, the State of Hawaii, everybody have a, an
obligation to those children walking across that street. You know, I mean like
after school, that's the way they go horne. They corne across there in droves, and
like cars just zip around that comer right by the store right at Market and
Vineyard, and they just drive around. I think, personally I think that stop sign is
back too far because they, you know, we're creatures of habits and people
continue to drive around that comer, you know, without hesitating. And, I mean
like at one time I didn't pay
I just would cross
crosswalk, but I
would be dodging and ducking cars. And then, it was brought to my attention
how dangerous that crosswalk, that comer was, and then I saw how bad it was.
Then it's, it's pretty bad, you know, but like as far as a financial gain and all that
stuff I, I can honestly say I never thought about it. But, I did think about all those
children and some of the older people, which I'm getting to be, crossing that
crosswalk. And, it's, it's just dangerous, and I, I don't even know whether the
stop sign is the answer but I cannot see another answer. I can see when ... it's
always been traffic backed up when people backed out into Market Street. It
backs the traffic up, but that still don't mean the children should be in jeopardy.
That's pretty much where I'm at with that traffic stop sign. I'd just hope that, I
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hope and I pray that thing don't go away, and if that, ifit does go away I'd like to
see an alternative. And, I think one of the alternatives too would be a raised
crosswalk there. Anything to make people slow down.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Rippy.
Rippy? Hnot, thank you again, John.

Members, any questions for Mr.

MR. RIPPY: Thank you folks
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, I, I do have one more testifier. Richard Dan testifying
for Carolyn Rintz, Printz?
MR. DAN: Yes, Carolyn Printz asked me to testify for her on behalf.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Public Works Item 38. Okay, Mr. Dan.
MR. DAN: (speaking in behalf of Carolyn Printz) Thank you very much. This is the
first time in my 30 years of business that I've been here, and now I'm here twice
in one, in one, in one meeting. I was unaware. I would like to thank Chela very
much for testifying on behalf of Ms. Hotta, and I was unaware of her position.
With regard to ...
MS. COENNEN (SPOKE FROM THE AUDIENCE): (inaudible)
MR. DAN: Oh, I thought you did when you said that what her feelings were.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Dan, if you can address the Members here.
MR. DAN: Well, she was talking to me. I'm sorry your honor.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
MR. DAN: It's interesting to me that the two parties most involved in this are the people
who will profit the most from it. Teri earlier stated that they want to make Market
and Vineyard the center of Wailuku, and we have now the two shop keepers from
the center of Wailuku. Obviously, if there is an issue with, with, with safety at
that corner, something has to be done. I have seen no records of any accidents or
history of accidents or problems at that corner and I, I don't know how I could
find that out. Is that available to us at this meeting in the Public Works report?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: We don't have that information as yet.
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MR. DAN: Oh, okay. I have nothing further to say.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? If not, thank you
very much.

38

PEDESTRIAN SAFETY AT THE INTERSECTION OF
VINEYARD STREET AND MARKET STREET (WAILUKU)
(C.c. No. 05-280)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, Public Works Item 38 is in regards to
pedestrian safety at the intersection of Vineyard Street and Market Street. This is
a result of our County Communication No. 05-280, which was transmitted by
letter from Mona Harris dated August 2, 2005. At this time, 1'd like to call on the
Public Works Director to give us an update in regards to the temporary four-way
stop.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item stems from a request from Ms.
Mona Harris expressing concern about the safety of pedestrians crossing at the
Vineyard and Market Street intersection in Wailuku. As you know, the
Department has implemented a temporary four-way stop at the intersection. We
were planning to get a report on the operation of the four-way stop to the
Committee for today's meeting, but we were unfortunately unable to do so, and I
apologize for not being able to provide this information to the Committee for their
review today. I, I can share some preliminary thoughts with the Committee, just
several things. Market Street itself is a traditional, but also it's a non-standard
County street. As you tum onto Market Street from Main, there are parallel
parking stalls on the left side of the street and angle parking stalls on the right
side. Vehicles getting in and out of these stalls are a prime source of friction for
traffic going along Market Street and the report that we'll be giving to the
Committee should be discussing the extent to which, you know, the stop sign at
Vineyard and Market contribute to the back up in addition to the, the parking
itself. For the Waie .. , Waihee, Waiehu, and the Waihee area, Kahekili Highway
and Market Street, which eventually joins into Market Street, is only one out of
two quarters in and out of the area. The other, of course, is Waiehu Beach Road.
There has been some discussion about the third quarter in the form of an Imi Kala
extension, which would be built by the Hale Mua project, which has yet to start
construction. If the third quarter can be built then ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...
some of the over all traffic in this Kahekili and Market Street corridor. And the
third thing, I, I want to mention is that the County has its Market Street
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Improvements Proj ect, and this has been on the books for a number years, and our
department hopes to start construction on that later this year. This project
involves drainage, roadway, sidewalk, and streetscape improvements to Market
Street, and the intent of the project is to retain the traditional character of Wailuku
Town, and one of the objectives is to encourage walkability. So, the report that
we will be giving to the Council, we'll be discussing whether the two, two-way or
four-way stop would compliment that, this project. That concludes my comments
on the matter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
Director? Mr. Molina.

Members, any questions for the

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Arakawa. I make
reference to a letter from Mr. Ranken who has a business there. I guess he's a, an
attorney. He claims in his letter that the implementation of this temporary stop
has now created a dangerous situation. Up until now, I have not heard it, you
know, referred to as a, you know, being caused a danger to the pUblic. Can you
comment on that? And maybe Mr. Chairman, at a later point, if I could ask the
Police Department the, the same question to give their comments 'cause myself
and Mr. Mateo went to observe the area and, you know, at least from, from my
vantage point, I didn't see anything that created a danger. So, I just wanted to get
comment from Mr. Arakawa on that.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina, I guess at this point I'll just throw out a
caveat that whatever comments I have would be preliminary. I, I have gone
through that four-way stop a number of times since the four-way stop was
implemented, and I did see some back up but for the most part I, I, I think it's
working fairly well from, from what I have seen. But again, you know, I'll wait
till, you know, our staff completes its report and comes up with the data to back
Council. And again, I apologize for not
that up and we, we will present that to
being able to get that to you today.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Arakawa then is
there a timetable that you're looking at in order to provide that report to us?
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MR. ARAKAWA: I was hoping to get it to you today. Obviously, it's not here. I'll
have to go check with staff, but you know, I'll try to get it to you as soon as
possible.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. And then, Chairman, just perhaps an
observation. When, when Member Molina and I did go and observe, we, we both
stood on the side of the road watching, watching the traffic flow. And it was real
obvious that a lot of our residents do not really corne to a complete stop, yeah, at
the stops. They run the stop. There was, there was a, a time when a woman
getting, an older woman getting shaved ice, cross the street, and she barely had to,
you know, that was a fast run across the street because the cars really weren't
stopping. So, the observations for us that afternoon was really an interesting one
because it's not first time we've actually gone and stood there and watched, other
than us driving through the location. So, for myself, I look at it as an aide in
helping the pedestrians especially because during our a little more than an hour
standing there, the fire truck also went through the, the street itself, and the cars
just pull on the side, and there was actually no delay in getting the fire truck
through, so I was quite impressed with their ability to maneuver. So, you know,
I'm interested to see the report because aside from what we hear, you, you know,
some, some major back ups in the light for the several times that we, we've gone
there, we actually didn't see, you know, that back up, and, and I don't know if
Maui is in fact seasonal. I think it's just based on when payday occurs town is
busy, you know, or when you get, you know, your benefits from Social Services,
town is busy. So, I'm interested in just trying to see the report from the
department. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Members, anymore questions? I,
I do have couple. In, in your report ... the study that you folks are doing, are, are
you looking at the total Market Street from Main Street to Vineyard Street? And
if that report can be broken down from Main Street to that intersection by
American Savings, and another report from American Savings intersection to
Vineyard Street? That would tell us or give us an indication if the traffic are
backing up between Main Street in, in the intersection of American Savings or,
you know, the whole street itself. And the third item that I'd like to see is in
regards to the traffic signals on Main Street. Previously, at that intersection, you
know, as you corne down from lao Valley Road, there was a left tum signal to, to
do your left tum onto Market Street, and of late of probably year, two years, the
traffic signal rather than having them only left tum you still have the left turn
arrow giving the right way of turning left into Market from, corning down from
lao, but now I see that the, you know, after that right, left tum arrow goes away
then you have the green light. And I think one of the testifier's alluded to this,
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you know, as people coming up Wailuku Town making a right on Market Street,
once that traffic clears then, you know, people coming down from lao Valley
trying to make a left turn to, on, on Market, you know, continues, continue
making that left turn until the light change. At times the traffic just backs up right
at that intersection. So, if a study can be done in regards to what was and what it
is today in regards to the traffic light and, and the pattern it is. You know, when
the traffic light was the, the old way, it, it provided some, I guess, delay moments
so that people could back out from Market Street, and, and you know, continue on
towards Vineyard. So, if we can have a report like that, I'd appreciate it for the
Committee. So, Members, anymore questions for Public Works? If there's no
more questions then this time the Chair would defer this item.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair, Chairman, you are-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --you're gonna have police-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --give their comments?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, before we defer this item, I'd like to have the Police
Department come down and provide us some comments. Lieutenant Moniz,
Sergeant Vickers, thank you again.
MR. MONIZ: Council Chair Mateo, in regards to what we've observed at that
intersection since that four-way stop was implemented. It seems to be working,
except that certain times of the day, like after work, it causes a back up on Market
Street. But,
our observations, we noticed that a lot more people are utilizing
Vineyard Street now that there is a four-way stop where they actually can make
that left turn coming down Vineyard onto Market more readily available to, to
them because of that four-way stop. And you see people sort of trying to beat the
other car through, but if that's a problem we can address that by, you know,
having the officers positioned there periodically to monitor that situation if
needed. But, a lot of people, they're courteous; they know that a four-way stop.
Everybody has their tum to go, so it's not really a problem, and you know, people
try, both, two or three cars trying to get through the intersection at the same time,
'cause I live in Happy Valley myself. I travel that road daily and, you know,
everybody seems to be cooperating letting the first person that gets there, they
have the right of way to get through. So, it's not a, a conflict of people trying to
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get through at the same time. And in regards to motor vehicle accidents, I can go
back and ask the person that does, keep all the stats, if we could get print out on
that to see what the situation is prior to the four-way stop, and also after the fourway stop was put in. And I know recent legislation has been passed in regards to
crosswalks, I mean pedestrian traffic, walking through crosswalks. I know the
fine is like $95, you know. So, there's laws that are in effect now that makes it
even, the fine worse than what it used to be so. But I, we don't see any problems
at that intersection right now other than that peak traffic hours after work or like
say on Friday when it's payday.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Lieutenant Moniz, thank you for your
comments. One, one of the questions I was going to ask you related to if there's
been any near misses or so-called dangerous situations as explained, as
commented in our April 27th letter to Director Arakawa from Mr. Ranken, and I'll
just wait for that report when it comes in since the installation of the stop sign,
yeah. Early we heard a testifier make mention of restricting right turns onto
Market Street. Can you comment on that suggestion? I mean would, would that
be a case of trying to solve one problem but with unintended consequences it
could create a, another problem?
MR. MONIZ: Because of that parking lane or that right turn lane if, if you going up and
trying to make a right tum onto Market Street from Main 'cause it's such a short
distance it actually backs up traffic by if you're gonna restrict no right turns
'cause I, I believe it only goes for maybe 100 feet and ifit gets back onto the main
thoroughfare, yeah, which is traffic, we're concerned about this going straight up
Main Street. So, if we're gonna have people backed up and onto the main lane of
travel of Main Street, it's gonna really back up traffic down towards Central. So
why, I think, by having it, a right tum on green, it will alleviate that traffic.
'Cause you all know I, I guess Chair Pontanilla had, had brought up the issue
regards to making that left tum when you coming down Main Street when you
could only make it on the green arrow. You saw what the problems it caused with
traffic being backed up into Market Street ... Main Street coming back to almost
up to the State Building because you could only make that left tum on green.
Yeah, on green arrow, when it's green you just stuck there, you can't go
anywhere, and the problem was a lot of people was running that red light, and it's
kind of confusing the way because of the way the traffic signal there is. There's a
green light and there's a red light on the bottom for, yeah, where that left turn
arrow was. So, it's kind of confusing for the, the motorist. Hey, there's a green
light or what is the red light for, yeah? If you're not familiar with the area a lot of
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people are running the red light because they see a green light also, so that's, that
was a problem that needed to be addressed also. But, with the way it is now, the
thing with left tum on green, you know, it's not really a, a major problem that we
see other than people not abiding by that blocking intersection law. You know, a
lot of intersections on Maui you see people they go and they stop in the
intersection knowing that they're not going to get through it before the light turns
red, which is a violation, you know. And then, in the intersection you do see a
sign is, you know, that Hana and Dairy Road. There's a big sign that says, you
know, actually if you had maybe if the sign was posted with a, the fine that is if
you get caught for a lot of people would abide by that law. So, but in regards to
the Wailuku situation, I don't think that restricting a right tum or a left tum would
be, be a solution to the problem of that traffic jam there.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina. I'm sorry, Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank, we just look alike.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You get the same glasses.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Lieutenant, how, how frequent
is the substation used by police officers?
MR. MONIZ: It's used quite frequently. It wasn't being used recently because of the
fact the air conditioning was done, but since the air conditioning was replaced the
officers are there almost on a daily basis now.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: During, during their, their use of, of the substation,
is the potential of just their, their presence by the crosswalk?
MR. MONIZ:
they not doing reo '" because they use
substation to do reports, so
they don't have to go back to the, the station because they, they have a computer
there, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, so.
MR. MONIZ: So, they're over there doing their reports.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. During, during that, during this period of, of
trying to test out the four-way stop, the, the police involvement is important
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because they, you know, just their presence alone slows down, you know, traffic,
yeah. So, just to consider, and I don't know what kind of rotational process
would be involved by just having police officers, you know, with their presence at
this particular intersection be ... , because I think that's kinda of what's gonna be
needed in order for people to understand that, you know, it is legally enforced.
The stop is legally enforced and there are ramifications of running, running the
stop, and the considerations of having the pedestrian in the crosswalk without the
full stop. So, just the presence alone would be, would be a real big benefit in
adding to the four-way stop itself.
MR. MONIZ: That issue can be brought up, and we can have periodic checks if their at
the substation, maybe walk there for a few minutes to see what's actually taking
place, and bring it back to the Administration's knowledge.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Members, anymore questions for
Lieutenant Moniz or Sergeant Vickers? If not, thank you guys. Members,
anymore questions for Public Works as well as Corporation Counsel? If not, the
Chair would like to recommend to defer this item and the next time we meet on
this item hopefully we'll get that report and make a decision at that time.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, at this time

like to close public testimony.

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If there's no objection and we did receive some written
testimony this morning, so if there's no objections, I'd like to accept this written
testimonies.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
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61

DEDICATION OF ROADWAY LOTS AND DRAINAGE
EASEMENTS FOR THE KULA MANU SUBDIVISION NOS.
1, 2, AND 3 (KULA) (C.c. No. 06-84)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the last item on the agenda is Item PW-61. This is
Dedication of Roadway Lots and Drainage Easements for Kula Manu Subdivision
Nos. 1, 2, and 3. This is a, is a result of County Communication No. 06-84,
transmitting the following:
1) A proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF ROADWAY
LOTS FOR THE KULA MANU SUBDIVISION NO.1, PURSUANT TO
SECTION 3.44.015, MAUl COUNTY CODE". The proposed ... the purpose of
the proposed resolution is to accept Roadway Lots 326 (Kulamanu Circle), 327
(Nunu Place), and 328 (Kulamanu Circle).
2) A proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF ROADWAY
LOTS FOR THE KULA MANU DIVISION NO.2, PURSUANT TO SECTION
3.44.015, MAUl COUNTY CODE". The purpose of the proposed resolution is to
accept Roadway Lots 354 (Ka'alele Place) and 355 (Leihulu Way).
3) A proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF A
ROADWAY LOT FOR THE KULA MANU SUBDIVISION NO.3,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.44.015, MAUl COUNTY CODE". The purpose of
the proposed resolution is to accept Roadway Lot 300 .. , 369 (Kapalulu Place).
4) A prop ... , proposed resolution entitled "ACCEPTING
EASEMENTS FOR KULAMANU SUBDIVISIONS NOS. 1, 2 AND 3,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.44.015, MAUl COUNTY CODE". The purpose
the proposed resolution is to accept Drainage Easements 129, 130, 131, 132, and
133 along Kulamanu Circle.
The subdivision was granted final approval on October 29, 2003. The
improvements are completed and was approved by the Department of Public
Works and Environment Management on September 24, 2004, and the
Department of Water Supply on January 28, 2005. At this time, I'd like to have
Mr. Arakawa give us some comments.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, I, I think you've pretty much covered what I was gonna
say. The only thing I, I can add is that all of the roadway lots and the drainage
easements have met the requirements of Title 18 of the Code, you know,
therefore accept. .. , acceptable for dedication to the County of Maui. And as the
Chair mentioned, there are three resolutions that are, are before you pertaining to
acceptance of the roadway lots and one resolution pertaining to acceptance of the
drainage easements. I should just mention the drainage easements are basically
needed for maintenance access purposes to, for our crews to, to be able to clean
the culverts that go underneath the road. So basically, the Committee's review
and consideration of the proposed resolutions is respectfully requested.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Hokama.

Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

Members, any questions? Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just quickly, Chairman. Mr. Director, the roadway
lots, are there additional road improvements that you anticipate regarding the
roadway lots that are up for consideration this morning?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. Not at this point. All the construction has been completed and,
you know, basically the roadway construction is all, all done.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And have met the County standards?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yep. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. My one question, you know, since
number four is, is regarding drainage easements, private property owners tend to
think drainage easements sometime belong to them, and so some do, do gardening
in drainage easements. Some park in drainage easements. Who has the
responsibility of maintaining the drainage easements? Is it the abutting property
owners, the County, or the County? 'Cause I get ... you know, I was asked that
same question and I would just ask you if you have a comment, please Mr.
Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAW A: Councilmember Hokama, the agreement does not have the County
maintain. It's basically with the, the owner of the ease, the owner of the property
if I'm not mistaken as far as the ... that's who'd be charged with the actual
maintenance of this easement area.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The private property owner that easement runs
through has that responsibility?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: If I may, Mr. Chair. I, I'm not sure what kind of arrangements the
developer has so I can't speak to that. I, we can only speak to what the County is
obligated or not obligated to do with respect to this easement and the, the
easement document that's before you or the, the group of easement documents
that's before you provide in Section 4 that this agreement does not obligate nor
charge the grantee with any duties or responsibilities with regard to the ownership
condition, repair, and/or maintenance of the Easement Agreement, or I'm sorry,
easement area, except as required by Section 2. And Section 2 of the easement
document would require the County as ... as grantee to if we do any maintenance
work or what have you that we would have to restore the, the property to its
original condition to the extent that, that the County has dug it up. So, we'd to
have to restore to that degree.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What if the abutting property owner blocks it or uses
it in, in a, in a manner?
MS. YOUNG: We also have prOViSIOns on, on what's the grantor, which is the
developer, can and cannot do with respect to the property, and it provides that the
grantor shall not erect or construct any building foundations, buildings, or
structures above or below present ground level, raise or lower present ground
level or plant any trees within easement area. And it provides further, unless the
grantor receives prior written approval from the Public Works and Environmental
Management Director. And, and, even if that, that written approval occurs then
they would still, they would still be required to defend and indemnify and hold
harmless the County to the extent that, that activity or that building causes
damage to a third-party.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So that would include the grantor and the property
owner that buys lots that have these drainage easements from the grantor?
MS. YOUNG: Yes, because this would bind the grantor and any of the grantor's
successors and assigns.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, anymore
questions for the Director? If not, before the Chair makes his recommendation,
I'd like to call a short recess. Thank you.
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:28 a.m.
11:29 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for the short recess. This time, Members, for your
information on May 10, we sent a memo to Corporation Counsel in regards to
revisions to the proposed resolutions and, and these revisions are nonsubstantive
technical changes, and the Chair would like to accept the resolutions as noted with
the intended amendment dated 5/4/2006. Members, if you could look for your
submitted information. Oh, I'm sorry May 4 th , May 4th. And, if Corporation
could comment on that? I get May 10th .
MS. YOUNG: I'm looking at a, is it a May 10th memo?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: May 10th .
MS. YOUNG: May 10th . These, these revisions, some of which are required by the
developer, which we just received this morning, those revisions along with the
revisions to the resolution are not nonsubstantive in nature, and, and primarily
either clarifying in nature or, for typographical revisions.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Point of information, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The point I am bringing up then is what is
Corporation Counsel's, Department of Corporation Counsel recommending to
you and this
for approval? The original or the, the revised that we
have not received?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The original and when we get to our Council meeting that the
revision will already be active. We'll, we'll act on the original ... the revised
amended proposals.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think, Chairman, I think we need a short recess
because-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCIL MEMBER HOKAMA: --that doesn't work that way at Council.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Short recess. . .. (gavel) ...

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:33 a.m.
11:35 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... is now back in session. Members, in regards to Public
Works Item 61, the Chair recommends that we accept the proposed resolutions as
indicated in your binders.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So move.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member
Molina. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, are you requesting filing of the item also?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And the filing of communication. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No objections to the inclusion of the filing, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Anymore discussion, Members? If not, all in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Hokama, Mateo,
Molina, and Chair Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Carroll.

Vice-Chair

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolutions; and FILING of communication.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, that's all we have for this morning. I thank you very
much for your participation. Meeting is adjourned.
ADJOURNED:

11:37 a.m.

APPROVED:

ANILLA, Chair

Public Works Committee
pw:min:060619:yb

Transcribed by: De1fey Fernandez
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